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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

PROJECT: City of Traverse City Regional WWTP Design-Build Solar 

Photovoltaic/Battery Energy Storage System (PV/BESS) 

 BIDS DUE:  Friday November 8, 2024 at 1:00 pm. 

This Addendum is issued prior to receipt of bids to provide for certain changes and clarifications 

to the Specifications and/or the Drawings, as herein specified, and is hereby made a part of the 

Contract Documents and shall be taken into consideration in preparing the Proposal.  All other 

conditions remain the same. 

Receipt of this addendum must be noted in the place provided on the Bid Form and dated 

November 4, 2024. 

Pre-Bid Meeting and Site-Walk Notes: 

The pre-bid meeting was held at 12:00pm on October 29 at the Traverse City WWTP 

Administration Building.  Art Krueger, Director of Municipal Utilities for the City of Traverse 
City provided a detailed overview of the contractual requirements of this RFP, reiterating the bid 

due date and other conditions as spelled out in the RFP.  This was followed by Tony Kingman, 

Solar Project Manager for Jacobs Engineering, who provided a detailed overview of the solar 

and BESS scope of work.  This was followed by a site tour to walk each solar PV roof location 

and electrical room as well as the BESS location and interconnection point.  There was a sign-in 

sheet for the Pre-Bid meeting see Attachment A. 

Questions were asked by the bidders during this meeting.  Some questions and answers may have 

been missed and bidders were requested to submit all their questions in writing. Below, are the 

questions and answers that were captured in our notes during the meeting as well as all the 

questions submitted by bidders.   

Clarification 1: The TCRWWTP membrane filtration process cannot be without power for any 

duration of time. Therefore, any solar power connections related to the Membrane Building or 

Boardman Boathouse building will need to be thoroughly vetted to ensure power remains at the 

membrane process. There is a separate MCC panel located on the North wall in the electrical 

room of the membrane building that may meet the needs of the solar connections and won't 

interfere with the operation of the membrane, if capacity is confirmed.  See Attachment B for 

Membrane Building electrical drawing. 

Clarification #2:  Drawing SO-105 should be titled “Boiler Building”, not “Digester #5”. 

Clarification #3:  The BESS is 1.75MW.  There are numerous places in the RFP where it states 

1.75kW.  This is incorrect. 

Clarification #4:  Lump Sum pricing per location is required on bid form.  Unit pricing as 

described in MDOT Spec. Section 818.04 Electrical is NOT required  
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Question 1: Can we please get the electrical interval data from TCLP? 

Answer 1: The electrical interval data is attached to this addendum is located HERE 

Question 2:  Is this project tax exempt? 

Answer 2: No 

Question 3: Who holds the roof warranty for Maintenance Building #2? 

Answer 3: Certain Teed, Warranty Registration Number WR-920069; Roof installed 

10/26/22.  See attached Roof Warranty document see Attachment C. 

Question 4: The BESS is not used for backup power? 

Answer 4: Confirmed; however, the BESS is to be “upgrade capable” to provide backup 

power at a later date (not part of this contract). 

Question 5: Is the solar/BESS connected to the plants Building Management System (BMS)? 

Answer 5: Yes, to monitor power generated only; not for controls. 

Question 6: Can PV modules/equipment vary from documents in RFP? 

Answer 6: Yes, but must meet “or equal” requirement. 

Question 7: Is there a “domestic content” requirement? (Made in America) 

Answer 7: No 

Question 8: Can the solar/BESS connect to the on-site Wi-Fi? 

Answer 8: No.  Separate Wi-Fi will be required and provided by PV provider for all required 

communications. 

Question 9: As printed, the time for completion doesn’t align 204 days from NTP to July 1st 

means NTP would need to be issued Nov 3rd, before bid due date. Please advise, if 

possible should we simply adhere to July 1st ? Due to long lead items (BESS), can 

the July 1, 2025 deadline be extended? 

Answer 9: This Grant Funding deadline may be extended for due cause. 

Question 10: What is the match split between the grant and the City? 

Answer 10: There is a 10% city matching funds. 

Question 11: Is the BESS located outdoors? 

Answer 11: Yes 

Question 12: Are there any combustion generators on-site? 

Answer 12: No 

Question 13: Plan set calls out the 120% rule, does this mean that only load-side backfed 

breaker interconnections will be accepted? Some of these panelboards are not 

suitable for this type of connection and a different section of 705.12 would be 

more applicable. 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1AbhRn8NleMxeQZKFvZo0EN2TNBrTOfkx?usp=drive_link
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Answer 13: The 120% rule applies where applicable. Section 705.12 is acceptable. 

Question 14: Relatedly, for 2.3 and similar is it acceptable to interconnect to the existing 

service ahead of the existing panel? 

Answer 14: It is acceptable on a case by case basis. 

Question 15: Pebble ballast will need to be removed for the roofs that feature them in the 

location where the PV will be located unless they’re adhered. Are the pebble roofs 

sealed or loose? Should our bid include gravel removal in scope? 

Answer 15: Pebble ballast is loose and bids should include any removal required.  It is 

anticipated that the ballast will be replaced on the roof once the PV array is 

installed. 

Question 16: The existing generator connection occurs at a central location? Does the generator 

only feed very specific loads? Has there been a determination on how to 

interconnect the solar PV so that it doesn’t get placed in parallel with the 

generator? 

Answer 16: The generator only feeds specific loads and therefore should not result in being in 

parallel with the solar PV. 

Question 17: Associated costs with structural reinforcement if necessary are difficult to 

determine without additional information. Our typical scope of work would 

exclude this reinforcement until such time as the roof can be evaluated by a 

structural engineer. Is it acceptable to exclude this from our system cost upfront, 

and we can revisit once a structural analysis for each site is conducted? 

Answer 17: For the purpose of bidding, assume all roofs are structurally adequate to support 

the solar PV.  The Maintenance Building #2 will likely require structural upgrades 

to support solar PV.  As the structural upgrade costs cannot be determined at this 

time, do not include structural upgrades in your bids. 

Question 18: Similarly, utility required upgrades cannot be known without an existing net 

metering agreement. Is it permissible to exclude utility-driven costs for 

interconnection if necessary from our bid until such time as we can determine 

these specifically? 

Answer 18: Yes, Interconnection upgrades required by the utility (if any) may be excluded 

from bids. 

Question 19: ASCE 7-22 is beyond the documentation of several leading PV racking 

manufacturer’s current design documents. If the racking to be installed does not 

have this certification currently, is it acceptable to use a current stamp with a prior 

version of ASCE? 

Answer 19: Prior version of ASCE is acceptable with AHJ approval. 

Question 20: Lightning protection is included as a requirement for each building. Are there 

existing lightning protection systems installed? And if this is required, would you 
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like this as an all inclusive price or a separate price for the cost of contracting a 

licensed LPS contractor? 

Answer 20: Bid the project assuming lightning protection is required and include in bid price. 

Question 21: SMA + 585 not compatible as drawn due to input current criteria. Any issues 

bidding a close alternative? 

Answer: 21: See response to Question 6. 

Question 22:  As printed, the time for completion doesn’t align 204 days from NTP to July 1st 

means NTP would need to be issued Nov 3rd, before bid due date. Please advise, 

if possible should we simply adhere to July 1st? 

Answer 22:    Adhere to July 1st 2025 deadline or check the box for Substantial Completion Date 

and provide the date on bid form. 

Question 23: In the RFP section 7 detailing the performance expectations of the battery it 

describes island mode, microgrid, and load shedding. When I asked about these 

requirements at the meeting I was told that these requirements were eliminated, 

please confirm. Are there any requirements of the battery other than the minimum 

1.75 MWH and its connection shown in the one line? 

Answer 23: The BESS is used for Peak Load Shaving.  Also see the response to Question 4. 

All other conditions of this bid proposal remains the same. 

Bidders must acknowledge receipt of this amendment. Acknowledgement must be shown in the 

spaces provided herein, and must be received with the proposal submitted to 

tcmanage@traversecitymi.gov no later than, November 8, 2024 @ 1:00 pm EST (local time).  

FAILURE TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM WILL CAUSE 

REJECTION OF PROPOSAL. 

Dated: ____________________ 

ACKNOWLEDGED: 

Bidder: _______________________ 

By: _______________________ 

Title: _______________________ 

mailto:tcmanage@traversecitymi.gov


ATTACHMENT A 



Meeting  Sign-In Sheet Date:October 29, 2024 Facilitator: City of Traverse City DMU and Jacobs 
Project: City of Traverse City Regional WWTOP Design-Build 

Solar Photovoltaic/Battery Energy Storage System (PV/BESS)

Location of meeting: 606 Hannah Ave. Traverse 

City, MI 49686

Name Title Company Phone Email 

Matt Glaz Director Commerical Contracting Corporation  586-557-6346 matt.glaz@cccnetwork.com

Mike Terranova Member Nova Terra Energy 517-896-8802 mike@novaterraenergy.com

Sachit Verma Program Manager Nova Terra Energy 248-347-3512 / 248-730-5697(Cell) sachit.verma@novaconsultants.com

Rob Heelee Regional Rep Solscient Energy 231-944-5846 rheelee@solscient.com

Alex Brown Program Manager Harvest Solar 517-740-6237 alexb@harvestsolar.com

Tim Pulliam Tech Sales Keen Technical 231-631-4990 tpulliam@keen-minds.com

Bob Waggener Elect. Cont. Waggener/Shaw Electric 231-218-9322 kbielski@shawelectric.com

Michael Powers Project Manager Keen Technical 231-394-1581 mpowers@keen-minds.com

TJ Brown VP Operations Keen Technical 906-235-2810 tbrown@keen-minds.com

Chad Becker Branch Manager Tiger Solar 616-803-9247 beckerc@tigersolar.com

Jeremy Ziente Director METCO 708-990-1419 jeremy@metcoengineering.com

mailto:matt.glaz@cccnetwork.com
mailto:mike@novaterraenergy.com
mailto:sachit.verma@novaconsultants.com
mailto:rheelee@solscient.com
mailto:alexb@harvestsolar.com
mailto:tpulliam@keen-minds.com
mailto:kbielski@shawelectric.com
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mailto:beckerc@tigersolar.com
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